
 
Paul Stone 

Access Executive 

Office of Rail Regulation 

One Kemble Street 

LONDON 

WC2B 4AN  

 

2nd May 2012 

 

Dear Paul, 

Reform of access contractual arrangements - Seeking your views January 

2012 Second response 

 

I attach Alliance Rail Holding’s (Alliance) comments in relation to the consultation 

for all questions other than 2, 3, 4 and 5 which were answered on the 8th March 

2012.  This response also encompasses the response of Grand Central.  

 

The ORR will also be receiving a response from Group in respect of this 

consultation.  If you have any queries please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

Ian Yeowart 

 



 
 

 

 

In response to paragraph 2.12 we have the following comments: 

We welcome the review especially in relation to “stopping the use of blocking rights”. 

It is helpful that ORR has acknowledged that operators do use rights to block others 

and this was something that was confirmed by some operators at the ORR 

workshop.  The use of “blocking” rights is a serious competition issue.  Given the 

serious nature of such an offence we would expect a formal investigation to be under 

way by ORR in its role as competition regulator.  Please advise what if anything has 

been done. 

 

In addition, we note the comment “and allow greater flexibility for Network Rail”.  It is 

a fact that Network Rail has a considerable amount of flexibility in many of its 

contracts.  It chooses not to use this flexibility and asks operators to bid into “white 

space”.  We do not see any compelling arguments to give more flexibility to Network 

Rail when it does not use its existing flex to full effect. 

 

 

The proposed approach is sensible. 



 

 

Alliance Rail is supportive of the principles behind the SPOTs proposals.  However, 

we do have concerns that the process is not robust in terms of revenue abstraction. 

It is also open to possible abusive behaviour by operators seeking to weaken 

competition.  ORR has already acknowledged that operators use rights to block 

competition – it seems that SPOTs could be used to block capacity. 

 

Generally the process is fine.  Alliance Rail has found it difficult to assess current 

access rights of other operators because of the ORR website not being updated with 

consolidations.  In addition, on the new applications forms we would like to see a 

statement as to whether the application is a section 17, 18, 22 or 22a. 

 

Alliance Rail is not supportive of “lighter touch” regulation.  The collapse of the 

banking sector is an indicator of poor “lighter touch” regulation.  Alliance Rail would 

rather see more involvement and review by the Office of Rail Regulation.    



 

 

Alliance Rail is aware that Network Rail and Operators make mistakes in their 

contracts.  There have been examples in the past when one operator deleted their 

schedule 5 by using a General Approval. Lighter touch regulation and expansion of 

the use of General Approvals could have a negative impact in capacity management 

of the network. 

 

No comment. 

 

No comment. 

 

No comment. 



 

 

The proposed revision of asset boundaries at stations will potentially remove the 

need for APAs as work would be undertaken by the SFO themselves.  At stations 

and depots where assets are redefined there is the potential to do away with the 

need for APA’s altogether.  This is to be welcomed. 

Alliance Rail has developed a number of station investment schemes and is keen to 

invest should our applications be successful.  Alliance Rail would like to ensure that 

investment to enhance facilities would not become more difficult in the future.  

Alliance Rail is keen to ensure SFOs do not become an abusive monopoly supplier 

and that their charges are transparent.  Alliance Rail also believes that there should 

be a regulatory process to ensure fairness by SFOs to other operators. 

 

No Comment. 

 

Alliance Rail would like to see a part F incorporated into part G and is fully supportive 

of a review by the part G IWG. 

 

No Comment. 



 

 

No Comment. 

 

No Comment. 

 

No Comment 

 

No Comment 

 

No Comment 



 

 

Alliance Rail would like to see the type of application clearly identified (e.g. 17, 18, 

22 or 22a).  In addition all applications should have the date that they were consulted 

on and submitted. 

 

The changes made to the website are much more user friendly.  Improvements can 

be made to make certain the content is up to date in relation to applications and 

consolidated track access contracts. 

 

 

Alliance Rail believes that a model contract for Open Access operators be provided. 

 

Alliance Rail agrees. 

 



 
Alliance Rail does not believe it appropriate to list out the details of private 

negotiations as part of a consultation.  We would like to discuss the issues directly 

with ORR. 

 

Network Rail appears to be reluctant to use the term congested infrastructure 

despite telling Alliance Rail that the West Coast Mainline is full.  It is debatable at 

what point a route becomes “congested” and this allows Network Rail to avoid formal 

declarations.  It would be helpful if ORR could define what congested is.  Does it 

mean that there is no capacity left at all or a percentage of capacity? 

 

No comment. 

 

No comment. 

 




